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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 

 
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 HEARING 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 11, 2019, Order from September 17, 2018 

Hearing was entered, a copy of which is attached hereto and by reference fully incorporated herein.  

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
2/14/2019 1:30 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that on the 14th 

day of February, 2019, served a true and correct copy of Notice of Entry of Order from September 

17, 2018 Hearing: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial District Court’s E-

file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 
  
melg@grimes-law.com 
olivian@grimes-law.com 

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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Michael Burton, Esq. 
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eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
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 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 
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 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
Date of Hearing: 
Time of Hearing: 

Oral Argument Requested: ☒Yes ☐ No 

 
PLAINTIFF’S NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS 
ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD 

SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBRUARY 
14, 2019 

 
TO: Defendant, Paige Petit, and her attorney, Melvin, Grimes, Esq. 

NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS 
MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE 
UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10) 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
2/28/2019 2:30 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COURT

April 3, 2019

10:00 a.m.

AA000300



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

ii 
 

DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION.  FAILURE TO FILE A 
WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN (10) 
DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE 
REQUESTED RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT 
HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE. 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a hearing will be held on this Motion before 

the Court, located at the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Ave., Las Vegas, 

Nevada 89101 in Department H, courtroom 3G at the following date and time: 

_____________________. 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby moves the Court for an 

Order: 

1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial; 

2. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.   

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 
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This Motion is made and based on the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 

set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen attached hereto, all papers and 

pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 28th day of February, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

I. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

History of the Case 

 Plaintiff Kevin Adrianzen and Defendant Paige Petit have one child together: 

Ryder (aged 5). Ryder just started kindergarten in the fall of 2018. The parties had a 

custody trial in June of 2014 with this court granting Mom primary physical custody 

and joint legal custody to the parties.  

 The court’s custody order contains not a single required finding under the 

NRS 1245C.0035(4) best interest factors1 nor does the order contain any substantive 

findings of fact that support the court’s decision to give Mom primary physical 

custody.   

After trial, Mom filed a motion to alter/amend findings which was heard on 

October 27, 2014. The court treated this motion as a motion to modify based on the 

facts and allegations contained therein as they had almost exclusively occurred after 

the evidentiary proceedings.  

At that hearing, the court re-affirmed the parties have joint legal custody and 

that Mom needs to include Dad in on these decisions and appointments, as Dad was 

                                                 

1 Including this statutes predecessor.  
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already raising the issue of Mom’s non-communication on joint legal custody issues 

a mere four months after trial. At the conclusion of the hearing, the court stated: 

It is possible under the continuing jurisdiction of this court that it might be 
determined to be in the best interest of the child to alter or amend the 
timeshare if things like work schedules, or the age of the child, warrants a 
change.2  
 

Dad filed this case less than three months after Ryder was born. The court’s 

initial custody schedule had Dad’s visitation at 24 hours a week until Ryder reached 

age 1. Since then, Dad’s custodial timeshare is two days a week—every weekend. 

Dad has consistently exercised this timeshare the past four years.  

Latest Round of Motions 

Mom filed a motion to modify timeshare on July 31, 2018. Dad filed his 

Opposition and Countermotion to modify custody on August 23, 2018.  

Of note, prior to filing the motions, the parties had been talking through their 

attorneys. As was noted in Dad’s motion, a deposition had occurred wherein Dad’s 

counsel deposed Mom in a separate case. Dad was dealing with a separate custody 

case wherein the Mom in this case was a witness.  

As Dad’s other case wrapped up, he was ready to file a stand-alone motion to 

modify custody in this case, but Mom filed her motion first. Dad is concerned that 

                                                 

2 See October 27, 2014 hearing video at 10:39:20.  
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the court may have felt his countermotion to modify custody was only brought in 

response to Mom’s motion—making it less genuine. But this was not the case.  

The Allegations Contained in Dad’s Motion 

On August 23, 2018 Dad filed a Motion to modify custody outlining that:  

1. Mom is cohabitating and engaged to a person with a serious drug problem 

who has multiple recent DUI’s (with dugs), numerous recent arrests for 

drug behavior and probation violations;  

2. Mom violated Dad’s joint legal custody rights numerous times based on 

Mom’s sworn deposition testimony, by failing to tell Dad about their 

child’s medical and dental appointments. This court has already informed 

Mom at the October 27, 2014 hearing shortly after trial that Dad has joint 

legal custody and she needs to include him on these issues;  

3. Mom consenting to flu shots for their son without discussing or informing 

with Dad; 

4. Mom has blocked Dad’s number on her phone;  

5. Mom has moved multiple times (including again recently) without telling 

Dad where their son is living;  

6. Mom failed to tell Dad about their son being in a car accident which 

resulted in Mom taking their son to the hospital which she didn’t inform 

Dad of either;  
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7. Mom failed to provide their son’s full legal name on official records, 

omitting Dad’s last name, and omitted Dad altogether on hospital and 

dental paperwork;  

8. Mom fails and continues to fail to respond to direct questions regarding 

their son such as asking about injuries; 

9. Mom has failed to accommodate any and all requests for additional time 

by Dad when he has family in town or other events because “the court did 

not order it”; 

10. Mom took their son out of state without Dad’s knowledge; 

11. Mom enrolled their son in school without informing Dad which school or 

discussing which school their son should attend; 

12. Mom allowed their son to contract scabies in her home; 

13. Mom fails to properly brush Ryder’s teeth, causing numerous dental 

problems which are excessive for a then-four-year-old; 

14. Dad has another child who he has joint physical custody of, and Dad would 

like to be able to plan activities with the siblings jointly; and 

15. Mom struck Dad during one exchange. 

The Court denied Dad’s motion to modify custody, stating all of the above, if 

true, was not a substantial change in circumstances since the last custodial order.  

Events Since Dad’s Motion and the Court’s Denial 

AA000307
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1. Mom dictates exchange location, threatens Dad with police if he 

tries exchanging at her house, claims she has no phone and states 

Dad must use Talking Parent to communicate with her—despite no 

order for this; and Mom moved again  

Mom continues to dictate exchange terms, including location, and demanding 

that the exchange must occur at an agreed upon exchange location, or there will be 

no exchange, Mom further threatens that if Dad were to come to her and her 

boyfriend’s house to facilitate the exchanges, she will be calling the police. Mom 

suggests inappropriate exchange locations such as saloons/bar and marijuana 

dispensaries.  There is no court order for this; and there is no history of domestic 

violence between the parties.  

 Mom now claims she has NO PHONE and Dad must set up a Talking Parent 

account if he wishes to communicate with her.3 Dad already has a talking Parent 

account for his other child and cannot have two apps running simultaneously at the 

same time. There is no order for Talking Parent. Mom has unilaterally imposed this 

on Dad. When Dad’s counsel reached out to Mom’s counsel to inquire about contact 

information for Mom (after weeks’ worth of text messages and numerous emails 

from Dad to Mom went unanswered), Mom’s counsel responded that Mom does not 

                                                 

3 See email from Mom to Dad re: no phone listed as Exhibit 1.  

AA000308



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

have a phone and suggested Talking Parents. This is just not believable, and another 

example of the games Mom plays to try and make Dad’s life difficult. Mom’s 

counsel then offered Mom’s new address, which was news to Dad. Dad’s counsel 

had requested Mom’s contact information in mid-February and the new address 

received from Mom’s counsel for Mom was from her move in mid-December. The 

numerous texts and emails Dad sent to Mom also included requests for confirmation 

that she had moved, yet Mom never responded. 

2. Ryder’s dental situation is tantamount to neglect; Ryder’s 

overall hygiene is also deficient 

Dad raised in his motion issues about Ryder’s dental care while with Mom. 

Mom’s response was that Ryder had “never had a cavity.” This is completely untrue, 

and his dental situation has gone from bad to worse.  

 Ryder has been to the dentist at least in September and again just this February. 

In September, the records state: “patient has history of incipient or active caries or 

lesions. Socioeconomic status of family.”4 This means 5-year-old Ryder’s teeth are 

starting to decay; and the dentist is citing the “socioeconomic status of family” 

(Mom) as a contributing factor. The Dentist is inferring Mom either lacks the 

resources to properly care for Ryder’s teeth, or they are saying Mom’s household 

                                                 

4 See Patient Progress Dental Notes Listed as Exhibit 2.  
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does not place a high priority on dental hygiene. Poor oral hygiene can be linked to 

health/organ issues. 

 On the February 13, 2019 appointment notes, all sorts of issues are noted. 

Tons of decay and even a crown is recommended. Mom reports “patient has a 

difficult time at home brushing and flossing.”5 He’s five.  

 Based on Dad’s personal knowledge, Ryder has at least seven cavities at age 

five. Mom had the cavity procedures performed by the dentist without informing or 

discussing with Dad.  Dad arranged for the crown to be done for Ryder after 

obtaining Mom’s agreement.  

 In addition to the dental concerns, Dad has other hygiene concerns about 

Ryder while with Mom. Dad has communicated his concerns to Mom about Ryder’s 

hygiene issues since the onset of Dad’s visits with Ryder.  As stated in the prior 

motion, Ryder contracted scabies in Mom’s home. Ryder also had a large stye 

approximately two (2) years ago and has had numerous since that time.  Styes are 

caused by bacteria infections of the eye. Every visitation for Dad starts with a bath 

for Ryder as his finger and toe nails are full of black dirt which likely are a breeding 

ground for the styes when Ryder touches his face. All of Ryder’s styes linger for 

                                                 

5 Id.  
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months at a time.  Ryder has had one stye since mid-November and another one 

develop just a month ago. 

 On Saturday February 9th, 2019, Mom asked Dad via email if she could do the 

exchange an hour later that same day. Dad agreed despite only getting 48 hours a 

week already and because Ryder was at a party and Dad did not want him to miss 

any of the party. The email came 30 minutes before the exchange.  Then Mom 

emailed (again, no phone?) Dad to say she would be at least 60 minutes late. A short 

while later, Dad heard his dog barking. Dad’s doorbell does not work, and his outside 

lights were off. He went to the door to see what the commotion was. Upon opening 

the door Dad saw 5-year-old Ryder standing there in the dark. Mom was gone.  

Ryder appeared petrified.  

3. Dad is unable to do extracurricular activities with Ryder 

Being that Dad only has 48 hours a week of visitation, doing extracurricular 

activities with Ryder has been difficult. As far as Dad knows, Ryder is in no 

extracurricular activities with Mom. 

 Since last summer, Dad has been doing soccer with Ryder on Sundays. For 

months, Dad has asked Mom if he can take Ryder to special clinics on Fridays as 

most of Ryder’s teammates have eclipsed him in skill-level because they all 

participate more than one day a week. Mom refused every single time. At Sunday 

soccer, the coaches and other parents regularly ask Ryder if he will be participating 
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on other days and Dad has to tell the coaches, “sorry, he can’t come on other days 

as I only have visitation on the weekends.” Ryder wants to be doing this.  

 In April, Dad will need to move soccer to Mondays because Ryder’s Sunday 

class will go up in level and Ryder cannot move up with his teammates due to lack 

of practice.  Monday soccer will also allow Ryder to attend Sunday church. The 

parties exchange on Mondays at 6:00 p.m. Monday soccer would require the 

exchange to be at 7:00 p.m. Since Mom was not agreeable to losing one (1) hour a 

week of her time with Ryder, to attend Monday soccer starting in April, Dad then 

offered they could keep the same 48- hour block and just move the Saturday 

exchange to 7:00 p.m. too. Mom refused. 

4. Recent Domestic Incident at Mom’s Home with her fiancé  

On or around November 12, 2018, Kevin got a Facebook message from 

Mom’s fiancé Shawn. The message stated: “Hey Kevin I’m not with Paige anymore 

and I want to see you win this shit you got going on so if there is anything you need 

from me just let me know because she fucked me too.”6 

This message made sense to Dad because that weekend Ryder had told him 

that Mom and Shawn had gotten in a fight and the police were called. This was being 

relayed by a five-year-old, thus Dad always considers this when Ryder tells him 

                                                 

6 See Facebook message from Shawn to Kevin listed as Exhibit 3. 
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something. But Ryder’s statement of a fight, and police; and then the Facebook 

message, strongly indicated to Dad that something happened at Mom’s house—in 

front of Ryder that caused the relationship to end, the police to come, and Shawn to 

send Dad this message.  

Apparently, Mom and Shawn reconciled because the Facebook message 

disappeared shortly thereafter.  

5. Injuries on Ryder 

One occasion where Dad noticed a bruise on Ryder’s face (that appeared 

a day or so before the last court hearing) and Mom did admit to Dad that Mom’s 

boyfriend caused the bruise on Ryder’s face. 

6. Holiday and Vacation timeshare 

Dad has suggested, on multiple occasions, that they divide the four (4) weeks 

of holiday time Ryder has off from school and to also discuss vacation time for both 

parents during the summer months.  Mom refuses to consider or discuss. 

7. Ryder’s insurance coverage 

Ryder’s medical insurance lapsed and Mom was not aware until Dad took 

Ryder to a therapy appointment and was declined due to no insurance. 

8. School issues since Ryder started kindergarten 

Ryder started kindergarten in fall 2018.  Mom does not send any school flyers 

or information to Dad.  Dad missed Open House because he was not informed or 

AA000313
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given the information Mom received from the school.  Mom has not updated her 

current contact information with the school which would be needed for emergency 

purposes.  Mom will not allow Dad extra time in order to take Ryder to tutoring.  

Ryder is in need of tutoring since he is behind in academics in comparison to the 

other kindergarteners in his class. 

 This motion follows. 

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

The Court Should Reconsider its Prior Order and Set an Evidentiary 

Hearing on Custody Modification 

 The court may reconsider a prior ruling with the moving party filing a motion 

within 14 calendar days after service of the notice of entry of order.7 

1. The Court’s Custody Order is Legally Deficient  

 A custody order must tie the child’s best child's best interest, as informed by 

specific, relevant findings respecting the NRS 125.480(4) and any other relevant 

factors, to the custody determination made. 8  Specific findings and an adequate 

                                                 

7 EDCR 5.512(a).  
8 Davis v. Ewalefo, 352 P.3d 1139, 1143 (2015)(citing Bluestein v. Bluestein, –––– Nev. ––––, –
–––, 345 P.3d 1044, 1049 (2015) (reversing and remanding a custody modification order for 
further proceedings because “the district court abused its discretion by failing to set forth specific 
findings that modifying the parties' custodial agreement to designate [mother] as primary 
physical custodian was in the best interest of the child”); see NRS 125.510(5) (“Any order 
awarding a party a limited right of custody to a child must define that right with sufficient 
particularity to ensure that the rights of the parties can be properly enforced and that the best 
interest of the child is achieved.”) (emphasis added); NRS 125C.010(1)(a) (identical, except it 
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explanation of the reasons for the custody determination “are crucial to enforce or 

modify a custody order and for appellate review.”9 More is at stake than facilitating 

appellate review.10 A child custody determination, once made, controls the child's 

and the parents' lives until the child ages out or the decree is judicially modified.11  

A parent cannot reasonably be expected to show that “a substantial change in 

circumstances” as to the child's best interest warrants modification of an existing 

child custody determination unless the determination at least minimally explains the 

circumstances that account for its limitations and terms.12 

Here, the parties’ custody order contains no required statutory findings; nor 

does it offer any factual explanations as to why Mom got primary custody. Dad 

therefore cannot legally prevail on custody modification as he has no basis for the 

starting point. This is exactly what the Davis court was talking about. And this court 

                                                 

substitutes “a right of visitation of a minor child” for “a limited right of custody”); Smith v. 
Smith, 726 P.2d 423, 426 (Utah 1986) (deeming it “essential” that a custody determination set 
forth “the basic facts which show why that ultimate conclusion is justified”). 
9 Id. (citing Rivero, 125 Nev. at 430, 216 P.3d at 227.) 
10 Id. 
11 Compare Rennels v. Rennels, ––– Nev. ––––, ––––, 257 P.3d 396, 398 (2011) (holding that a 
stipulated order according nonparents visitation can only be modified “upon a showing of a 
substantial change in circumstances that affects [the] child's welfare such that it is in the child's 
best interest to modify the existing visitation arrangement”), and Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. at 
150, 161 P.3d at 242 (to similar effect), with Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction and 
Enforcement Act (UCCJEA) § 303, adopted in Nevada as NRS 125A.445(1) (under the 
UCCJEA, a child custody determination carries nationwide effect; a court “shall recognize and 
enforce a child custody determination of a court of another state if the latter court exercised 
jurisdiction in substantial conformity with the provisions of” the UCCJEA). 
12 Id. at 1144.  
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denying Dad’s motion on this basis is the exact outcome the Nevada Supreme Court 

cautioned against.  

2. Dad has established a prima facie case for custody modification, 

thus the court must set trial 

 The Nevada Supreme Court has weighed in on whether a trial court must 

conduct an evidentiary hearing on a motion to modify custody, or whether a district 

court may decide such a motion on affidavits and points and authorities alone.13  

The Nevada Supreme Court adopted an “adequate cause” standard and held 

that  a district court has the discretion to deny a motion to modify custody without 

holding a hearing unless the moving party demonstrates “adequate cause” for 

holding a hearing.14 “Adequate cause” arises where the moving party presents a 

prima facie case for modification.15 To constitute a prima facie case it must be shown 

that: (1) the facts alleged in the affidavits are relevant to the grounds for 

modification; and (2) the evidence is not merely cumulative or impeaching.16 

                                                 

13 Rooney v. Rooney, 109 Nev. 540 (1993). 
14 Id. at 542-543. (See Pridgeon v. Superior Court, 134 Ariz. 177, 655 P.2d 1 (1982) (court shall 
deny a motion to modify custody unless it finds that the pleadings establish **125 adequate 
cause for hearing the motion); Betzer v. Betzer, 749 S.W.2d 694 (Ky.Ct.App.1988) (if the trial 
court determines that the affidavits fail to establish adequate cause for a hearing, the motion for 
modification of custody shall be denied without a hearing); Lutzi v. Lutzi, 485 N.W.2d 311 
(Minn.Ct.App.1992) (court did not wrongfully deny an evidentiary hearing on a proposal to 
modify custody where the moving party failed to demonstrate a prima facie case for the 
modification); Roorda v. Roorda, 25 Wash.App. 849, 611 P.2d 794 (1980) (court shall deny a 
motion to modify custody unless the affidavits establish adequate cause for hearing the motion). 
15 Id. 
16 Id.  
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The Nevada Supreme Court has also weighed in on what the moving party 

must show to modify custody. The moving party must show that: (1) there has been 

a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child, and (2) the 

child's best interest is served by the modification.17  

The Nevada Supreme Court held that the “change in circumstances” involves 

the parents, the child, and family unit as a whole; and while stability is important 

and the court should not take this prong lightly, “unless circumstances have changed 

to such an extent that modification is appropriate.”18 

Facts matter. In Ellis, the non-custodial parent filed a motion to modify 

custody, stating “the circumstances warranted a change in custody because, among 

other things, Geena's school performance was in decline.”19 In its order, the court 

determined that joint physical custody was in Geena's best interest and thus modified 

the custody arrangement so that Carucci and Ellis would alternate week-long 

custody of their daughter. The district court stated that Geena's school performance 

was the key substantial issue litigated and concluded that Banta's testimony that 

Geena's academic achievement had significantly slipped constituted sufficient 

evidence of changed circumstances to warrant a modification.20 That is the entirety 

                                                 

17 Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 150 (2007).  
18 Id. at 151.  
19 Id.  
20 Id.  
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of the “changed circumstances” in Nevada’s polestar case on custody modification 

threshold.  

Here, Dad has averred way more significant and troubling facts and 

circumstances relevant to child custody.   

Ellis: Dad alleges via motion that the child’s grades have deteriorated. Court 

sets evidentiary hearing. Testimony supported Dad was more involved than Mom 

with school, thus a modification to joint physical custody was in the child’s best 

interest. Decision upheld. 

Here, Dad alleges via motion that: 

1. Mom is cohabitating and engaged to a person with a serious 

drug problem who has multiple recent DUI’s (with dugs), and 

numerous recent arrests for drug behavior and probation 

violations;  

2. Mom violated Dad’s joint legal custody rights numerous 

times based on Mom’s sworn deposition testimony, by failing 

to tell Dad about their child’s medical and dental 

appointments. This court has already informed Mom at the 

October 27, 2014 hearing shortly after trial that Dad has joint 

legal custody and she needs to include him on these issues;  

3. Mom has blocked Dad’s number on her phone;  

AA000318



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

4. Mom has moved multiple times (including again recently) 

without telling Dad where their son is living;  

5. Mom failed to tell Dad about their son being in a car accident 

which required a hospital emergency room visit;  

6. Mom failed to provide their son’s full legal name on official 

records, omitting Dad’s last name and omitting Dad as 

Ryder’s parent on same forms/records;  

7. Mom fails and continues to fail to respond to direct questions 

regarding their son such as asking about injuries;  

8. Mom has failed to accommodate any and all requests for 

additional time by Dad when he has family in town or other 

events because she has plans or ignores me and “the court did 

not order it”; 

9. Mom allowed their son to contract scabies in her home; 

10. Mom fails to properly brush Ryder’s teeth, causing numerous 

dental problems which are excessive for a then-four-year-old; 

11. Dad has another child who he has joint physical custody of, 

and Dad would like to be able to plan activities with the 

siblings jointly;  

12. Mom struck Dad during one exchange; and 
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13. Mom took Ryder out of state without informing Dad. 

When the court denied Dad’s motion without an evidentiary hearing, it is 

saying that even if everything above is true, it does not warrant modifying custody. 

Additionally, as stated, Dad cannot hit a target he cannot see. The Court’s prior 

custody order is so legally deficient that Dad has no idea what he’d even need to 

prove to establish a change in circumstances as there’s zero findings to support the 

court’s custodial order.  

The court should therefore reconsider its prior order denying Dad’s motion to 

modify without an evidentiary hearing and set this matter for trial so the court can 

take evidence and set custody in Ryder’s best interest.  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 
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/ / 

 
III. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial; 

2. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.   

DATED this 28th day of February, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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NOTC 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
Date of Hearing: 
Time of Hearing: 

Oral Argument Requested: ☐Yes ☒ No 

 
PLAINTIFF’S RE-NOTICE OF MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OF 
DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS ON PLAINTIFF’SMOTION 
TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 

2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBRUARY 14, 2019 
 
TO: Defendant, Paige Petit, and her attorney, Melvin, Grimes, Esq. 

NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS 
MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE 
UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10) 
DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION.  FAILURE TO FILE A 

April 9, 2019

10:00 AM

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
3/1/2019 4:42 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN (10) 
DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE 
REQUESTED RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT 
HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE. 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a chamber hearing will be held on this Motion 

before the Court, located at the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Ave., Las Vegas, 

Nevada 89101 in Department H, at the following date and time: 

_____________________. 

 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 

 

 

April 9, 2019 at 10:00 AM
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CSERV 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
 
 
Date of Hearing:  April 9, 2019 
Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that on this 5th 

day of March, 2019, served a true and correct copy of: 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

 

 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
3/5/2019 4:26 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Plaintiff’s Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Evidentiary Proceedings on 

Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support from September 17, 2018 

Order Entered February 14, 2019 filed February 28, 2019; 

2. Plaintiff’s Exhibit Appendix; and 

3. Plaintiff’s Re-Notice of Motion. 

 
__X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial District Court’s E-

file and E-service System to the following: 

Melvin Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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OPPC (FAM) 
MELVIN R GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12972 
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
Tel: (702) 347-4357 
Fax: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

*********** 

KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff,  

 
CASE NO.:  D-13-489542-D 

 
DEPT:         H 

Vs.  
 

HEARING DATE:    APRIL 3, 2019 
HEARING TIME:   10:00 AM 

PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant.  

 

 
 DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS 
ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD 

SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBUARY 14, 
2019 
 AND  

COUNTERCLAIM FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS  
 

COMES NOW, the Defendant, PAIGE PETIT, by and through her attorney, 

MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ., of THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE, and submits this 

Defendant’s Opposition to Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Evidentiary 

Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support from 

September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019 and Counterclaim for 

Attorney’s Fees and Costs. 

/ / / 

/ / /  

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
3/21/2019 9:51 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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This Opposition is based on the papers and pleadings on file with this court, 

the Memorandum of Points and Authorities attached hereto, and such argument as 

this Court may permit. 

 Respectfully submitted this    21st     day of March 2019. 

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

       /s/ Melvin R. Grimes      _ 
MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No: 12972 
Melg@grimes-law.com  
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
p: (702) 347-4357 
f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. Statement of Facts 

As the court has been briefed on this matter ad nauseum, Defendant will refrain 

from providing a rote recitation of the facts as the history of the case along with the 

entirety of the Plaintiff’s motion is little more than an attempt to relitigate already 

ruled upon matters. 

II. Legal Argument  

A. The Court’s Order is Not Legally Deficient 
A custody order must tie in the child’s best interest accompanied by finding of 

fact with regards to the factors set forth by NRS 125C.0035(4) and any other factors 

that the Court deems relevant to the custody determination. Davis v. Ewalefo, 352 

P.3d 1139, 1143 (2015) (citing Bluestein v. Bluestein, ___ Nev. ____, ___, 345 P.3d 

1044, 1049 (2015). 

Here, the court entered findings of fact, in its order, stating “THE COURT 

FINDS the actions of Defendant’s fiancé have not caused any neglect on the part of 

the Defendant.”  That the Plaintiff is dissatisfied with such a finding, does not amount 

to a legally deficient finding of fact on the part of the Court.  

The Plaintiff continues to argue that due to the drafting of the original custody 

order, he is unable to prevail on a motion to modify custody as there is no starting 

point. Plaintiff should have argued this matter at the time of the original custody 

order. As such, any argument would clearly be excluded by the doctrine of laches.    

B. Plaintiff Failed to Establish a Prima Facie Case for Custody 
Modification 

The Nevada Supreme Court has adopted the “adequate cause” standard which 

empowers the district court to deny a motion to modify custody without holding a 

hearing unless the moving party demonstrates “adequate cause” for holding a 

hearing. Rooney v. Rooney, 109 Nev. 540, 542-3 (1993). “Adequate cause” requires 

that the moving party present a prima facie case for modification. Id. In order to 
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show a prima facie case, the moving party must show: 1) that the facts alleged in the 

affidavits are relevant to the grounds for modification; and 2) the evidence is not 

merely cumulative or impeaching. Id. 

The standard to modify physical custody was set forth in Ellis v. Carucci 

requiring that the moving party show that: 1) there has been a substantial change in 

circumstances affecting the welfare of the minor child; and 2) the child’s best 

interest is served by the modification. 123 Nev 145, 150 (2007). 

Here, the Plaintiff failed to present a prima facie case. The Plaintiff attempts 

to compare this court’s decision to that in Ellis but fails to take into account the 

necessity of the court to see each case in its unique totality.  

Plaintiff attempts to apply a line of logic which is designed only to mislead the 

court in that “When the court denied Dad’s motion without an evidentiary hearing, it 

is saying that even if everything above is true, it does not warrant modifying 

custody.” What the Court explicitly said is that “there is no adequate cause to re-

litigate custody.”  

Further, the Plaintiff is so concerned with simply winning a custody battle that 

he has resorted to using terms such as “dad cannot hit a target he cannot see.” This 

isn’t a competition, this is matter regarding the welfare of a minor child. The fact 

that the Plaintiff cannot see the target may be an indicator that his fictitious target 

simply doesn’t exist. The Court’s prior custody order was very clear. Plaintiff 

appears to be confused as he states that “he has no idea what he’d even need to prove 

to establish a change in circumstances…” What the Plaintiff appears to be missing is 

that there simply has not been a change in circumstances.  

That the Plaintiff feels his argument constitutes circumstances affecting the 

welfare of the child is not important. What is important is that he failed to plead 

evidence sufficient enough to convince this court.  

The Plaintiff’s absurd reasoning aside, the Defendant is not opposed to a 

reevaluation of child support. Any order moving forward should be based on the 
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parties’ current financial disclosure forms, actual earning capacity, and with a full 

understanding of the financial needs of the minor child.  

III. Counterclaim  

A. The Defendant is entitled to an Award for Past Medical Expenses 

The Parties stipulated and agreed that medical expenses would be evenly split 

by the parties.1 The parties Decree of Divorce does not make such division pursuant 

to the 30/30 rule. However, Paige has submitted each of the following to Plaintiff and 

he has failed to reimburse her any of the costs.2 Plaintiff owes Paige $6650.99 before 

the application of appropriate interest.  

B. The Defendant is Entitled to an Award of Attorney’s Fees and Costs 

Chapter 18 of the Nevada Revised Statutes grants courts discretion to award 

attorney fees “when the court finds that the claim…was brought or maintained 

without reasonable ground” and permits courts to “punish for and deter frivolous or 

vexatious claims and defenses because such claims and defenses overburden limited 

judicial resources, hinder the timely resolution of meritorious claims and increase” 

costs.  NRS 18.010(2)(b). To justify an award of attorney’s fees, the district court 

must determine whether there were reasonable grounds for the claims asserted. 

Bergmann v. Boyce, 109 Nev. 670, 675, 856 P.2d 560, 563 (1993). The proper inquiry 

evaluates the frivolousness of the suit at the time it was initiated. Barozzi v. Benna, 

112 Nev. 635, 639, 918 P.2d 301, 303 (1996).   

Further, the Plaintiff has failed to present facts and legal analysis that would 

enable this court to provide him the relief sought. The Plaintiff’s countermotion was 

doomed from the onset and have done little more than create a financial burden upon 

the Defendant and served only to further inflame litigation in a case that has been 

ruled upon.  

                                                 
1 See the Decree of Divorce filed on August 18, 2014, page 3, lines 11-14. 
2 See Exhibit A – Copy of schedule and related billings and receipts. 
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The court should therefore award the Defendant attorney’s fees and costs 

related to the defense of the present motion. The Defendant seeks leave of the court 

to submit an affidavit of fees and costs, and a Brunzell affidavit in support of an award 

of fees and cost. 

IV. Conclusion 

Defendant, PAIGE PETIT, therefore, prays that this Court:  

1. Deny the Plaintiff’s Motion; 

2. Grant Defendant an Award of Attorney’s Fees and Costs; and 

3. Any further relief this court deems just and equitable. 

 Respectfully submitted this _21st_ day of March 2019. 

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

       /s/ Melvin R. Grimes      _ 
MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No: 12972 
Melg@grimes-law.com  
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
p: (702) 347-4357 
f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 
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DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
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v. 

Defendant/Respondent 

Case No.   

Dept.         

MOTION/OPPOSITION 
FEE INFORMATION SHEET 

Notice:  Motions and Oppositions filed after entry of a final order issued pursuant to NRS 125, 125B or 125C are 

subject to the reopen filing fee of $25, unless specifically excluded by NRS 19.0312.  Additionally, Motions and 

Oppositions filed in cases initiated by joint petition may be subject to an additional filing fee of $129 or $57 in 

accordance with Senate Bill 388 of the 2015 Legislative Session. 

Step 1.  Select either the $25 or $0 filing fee in the box below. 

  $25  The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is subject to the $25 reopen fee. 
-OR-

$0    The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen

fee because: 

  The Motion/Opposition  is being filed before a Divorce/Custody Decree has been 

entered. 

  The Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support 

established in a final order. 

  The Motion/Opposition is for reconsideration or for a new trial, and is being filed 

within 10 days after a final judgment or decree was entered.  The final order was 

entered on                 . 

  Other Excluded Motion (must specify)       . 

Step 2.  Select the $0, $129 or $57 filing fee in the box below. 

  $0    The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $129 or the 

$57 fee because: 

  The Motion/Opposition is being filed in a case that was not initiated by joint petition. 

  The party filing the Motion/Opposition previously paid a fee of $129 or $57. 
-OR-

$129  The Motion being filed with this form is subject to the $129 fee because it is a motion 

to modify, adjust or enforce a final order. 
-OR-

$57   The Motion/Opposition being filing with this form is subject to the $57 fee because it is 

an opposition to a motion to modify, adjust or enforce a final order, or it is a motion 

and the opposing party has already paid a fee of $129. 

Step 3.  Add the filing fees from Step 1 and Step 2. 

The total filing fee for the motion/opposition I am filing with this form is: 

$0   $25   $57   $82   $129   $154 

Party filing Motion/Opposition:   Date 

Signature of Party or Preparer  

Kevin Adrianzen

Paige Petit

D-13-489542-D
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X

X

The Grimes Law Office for Defendant 03/21/19

/s/ Katherine Mendoza
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APP 
MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No: 12972 
Melg@grimes-law.com  
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Avenue Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
p: (702) 347-4357 
f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

********* 
KEVIN ADRIANZEN,

     Plaintiff, 

       vs. 

PAIGE PETIT, 

     Defendant. 

CASE NO.: D-13-489542-D 
DEPT NO.: H 

HEARING DATE: April 3, 2019 
TIME: 10:00 AM 

APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS TO DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION 

FOR RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY 

PROCEEDINGS ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND 

CHILD SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED 

FEBRUARY 14, 2019 AND COUNTERCLAIM FOR ATTORNEY’S FES AND 

COSTS 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
3/21/2019 9:51 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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// 

COMES NOW, Defendant, PAIGE PETIT, by and through her Attorney of 

Record, Melvin R. Grimes, ESQ of The Grimes Law Office and Submits this 

Appendix of Exhibits to Defendant’s Opposition to Motion for Reconsideration of 

Denial of Evidentiary Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child 

Support from September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019 and Counterclaim 

for Attorney’s Fees and Costs. 

Dated this   21st   day of March, 2019. 

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

_/s/ Melvin R. Grimes________ 
Melvin R. Grimes, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No.12972 
8540 S. Eastern Avenue Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV  89123 
(702) 347-4357

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit Title of Document(s) Bates Stamped No. 

A Defendant’s Medical Bills DEF0001-DEF0114 
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ROPP 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H  

 
 
Date of Hearing:  April 9, 2019 
Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 

 
PLAINTIFF’S REPLY AND OPPOSITION TO COUNTERMOTION FOR 

ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS 
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

reply to Defendant’s Opposition and opposes Defendant’s Countermotion 

requesting the Court issue an Order: 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
4/5/2019 11:43 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial;  

2. Denying Mom’s request for reimbursement of years old and never-

before-seen medical bills; 

3. Denying Defendant’s request for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and 

Costs; and  

4.  For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Reply and Opposition is made and based on the Memorandum of Points 

and Authorities set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen attached hereto, 

all papers and pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by counsel, if any, at 

the hearing.  

DATED this 5th day of April, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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A. The Court Should Grant Dad’s Motion for Reconsideration and Set an 

Evidentiary Hearing; and Deny Mom’s Request for Reimbursement of Never-
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B. The Court Must Deny Mom’s Request for Attorney’s Fees as She Failed to 
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III. Conclusion ....................................................................................................... 7 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Mom counters Dad’s Motion to reconsider on his custody modification 

motion by including receipts and bills for allegedly over $6,600 in unreimbursed 

medical bills dating back to Ryder’s birth— more than five years ago; and pre-dating 

the parties’ 2014 divorce. This is the fist time Dad has ever seen these bills. They 

have never been remitted to Dad for reimbursement. Mom provided no proof she 

ever sent these bills to Dad, despite her assertions that she did.  

Ironically, Mom’s submission and request for reimbursement of these bills 

proves two of Dad’s points: 1) Mom has failed to include Dad in many of Ryder’s 

medical appointments as he was unaware of these appointments; and 2) The amount 

of medical treatment Ryder has received with this amount of out-of-pocket expenses 

when he is on state Medicaid is astronomical for a five-year-old. What is even more 

perplexing is why were these “bills” not brought up when the parties were just last 

in court? Because Mom knows she never told Dad about these bills or appointments 

and they are a further indication of her exclusion of Dad from Ryder’s life.  

Some of these bills are prior to the parties’ divorce proceedings in 2014.  
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II. STATEMENT OF FACTS & ARGUMENT IN REPLY 

A. The Court Should Grant Dad’s Motion for Reconsideration and Set 

an Evidentiary Hearing; and Deny Mom’s Request for 

Reimbursement of Never-Before-Disclosed Medical Bills 

Dad has laid out numerous facts in his motion showing there are a litany of 

serious issues ongoing that affect Ryder’s well-being. These were outlined ad 

nauseum in Dad’s motion to reconsider as well as his original motion.   

 The Court felt Dad did not meet his legal burden of “substantial change in 

circumstances” since the last custodial order— which was prior to Ryder turning a 

year old. Dad cited an on-point case that specifically provides that a custody order 

must contain statutory findings of best interest because a litigant in a post-decree 

proceeding requires these findings to make a case for modification. The court 

denying Dad’s motion and stating he failed to make a prima facia case of substantial 

change in circumstances, with an order with zero findings, puts Dad in a position 

that he can never modify custody—regardless of Ryder’s best interest.   

 Dad pled numerous issues as to why custody should be changed in this case— 

far more than the issues which existed in Ellis, the polestar case on custody 

modification burden. And these issues are ongoing every single day.  

 Since filing his current motion for reconsideration, Ryder came to Dad’s with 

bruises on his arm and both of the calves of his legs. Dad asked what happened? 
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Ryder’s response was “Shawn kicked me, and I fell down.” Shawn is Mom’s “fiancé” 

and as previously shown, has a plethora of serious personal problems including out-

of-control drug use that led to him being arrested for pan-handling drugs outside a 

recreation center. This is who Ryder lives with in Mom’s home 5 days a week. When 

asked, Mom says Ryder “tripped going both up and downstairs while playing”—

which is not what Ryder told Dad. Granted Ryder is five, but this is not even close 

to the first time he has said disturbing things about Shawn. Notably, he also recently 

told Dad that there was a “fight” between Mom and Shawn and the police were 

involved. This was around the same day Shawn briefly reached out to Dad with an 

offer to “assist” Dad in his case until Mom and he reconciled.  

And considering Shawn’s drug history, Dad has legitimate concerns as to 

what is going on in Mom’s home and what Ryder may be witnessing and being 

exposed to as far as drug use. Just because Dad cannot prove having Shawn in the 

home has had a direct impact on Ryder, it is logical to assume someone with his 

recent drug history may be careless as to what he leaves laying around the house for 

a five-year-old to possibly consume.  

 Additionally, Mom sent Dad an email about a doctor’s appointment. She is 

now taking Ryder to the Ophthalmologist for the recurring stye issue Dad raised in 

his motion. Mom only acknowledged this issue after Dad brought it forth to the court. 

Mom initially told Dad the appointment was 10:00 a.m. Then she told him she 
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changed it to 8:00 a.m. Dad went at 8:00 a.m. and was told by the office that the 

appointment had been moved back to 10:00 a.m. Interestingly, the doctor’s office 

called Mom on the phone, right in front of Dad. Mom has maintained the last several 

months that she does not have a phone, thus Dad has no way to contact her except 

email. She has a phone. Everyone knows she has a phone. It is just another senseless 

game. 

 And Mom’s submission of over $6,000 in unpaid out-of-pocket medical 

expenses (dating back to 2013) is further proof. Seriously?  Most people do not have 

that amount of out-of-pocket medical expenses in their entire life. Ryder is five. 

Mom never gave Dad any of these receipts. Why? Because she was not even telling 

him she was taking Ryder to the doctor; or that there were issues. Further, the bills 

submitted are not all for Ryder and include Mom’s prenatal care.  None of these bills 

were ever provided by Mom to Dad.  Now, in response to Dad’s motion, Mom seeks 

reimbursement. She has waived that claim. 

 Moreover, these medical receipts are just another example of Mom lying. She 

claims she has “submitted each of the following” to Dad. Yet not a single ounce of 

proof. No emails. No letters. Nothing. Five years of supposed receipts and five years 

of supposed submissions to Dad; yet this is the first time this has ever been brought 

up—despite the parties being in court as recent as August. Fishy.  

 / / 
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B. The Court Must Deny Mom’s Request for Attorney’s Fees as She 

Failed to File a Financial Disclosure Form; and Mom’s Request is 

Meritless 

The court may award attorney fees to a prevailing party; or when the court 

finds a party has brought a claim or maintained a defense without reasonable grounds 

or to harass the opposing party.1 The court shall liberally construe this provision in 

favor of awarding attorney’s fees in appropriate situations.2       

When deciding attorney’s fees awards in family law matters, four 

requirements were set forth3: 1) counsel must cite a legal basis for attorney’s fees; 

2) the Court must evaluate the Brunzell4 factors; 3) the Court must consider any 

disparity in income of the parties under Wright 5 ; and 4) the request must be 

supported by affidavit or other evidence.  

All financial requests, including attorney’s fees, require the requesting party 

file a financial disclosure form within 2 judicial days of filing their motion or 

countermotion.6 

                                                 

1 NRS 18.010(2)(a)-(b).  
2 Id.  
3 Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005). 
4 Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345 (1969). 
5 Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1370 (1998). 
6 EDCR 5.506(2).  
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Here, the court should deny Mom’s request for fees on the merits, as well as 

based on her failure to file a financial disclosure form as required by court rule.  

To award Mom attorney’s fees, the court must find that Dad’s motion is 

frivolous or meant solely to harass. That is not the case here. Dad cited appropriate 

legal authority that supports his position and is based on spot-on Nevada Supreme 

Court precedent.  

The court should therefore deny Mom’s request for attorney’s fees.  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 
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III. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial;  

2. Denying Mom’s request for reimbursement of years old and never-

before-seen medical bills; 

3. Denying Defendant’s request for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and 

Costs; and  

4.  For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

DATED this 5th day of April, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Michael Burton 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 5th day of April, 2019, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Reply 

and Opposition to Countermotion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Melvin Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
 
  

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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SUPP 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H 

 
 
Date of Hearing:  April 9, 2019 
Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL EXHIBITS TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS 
ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD 

SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBRUARY 
14, 2019 

 
COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

exhibits to supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
4/8/2019 11:34 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Evidentiary Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support 

from September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019. 

See attached Exhibit 4 text from Defendant to Plaintiff with explanation of 

minor son’s bruises on arm; Exhibit 5 emails dated March 23, 2019 between parties 

re: minor son’s hygiene issues; Exhibit 6 communications from Defendant to 

Plaintiff for eye appointment scheduled, rescheduled and Defendant’s phone # used 

by eye doctor and CCSD portal; and Exhibit 7 Letter dated April 3, 2019 from minor 

son’s principal re: individualized reading plan needed 

DATED this 8th day of April, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 8th day of April, 2019, served a true and correct copy of Supplemental 

Exhibits To Plaintiff’s Motion For Reconsideration of Denial of Evidentiary 

Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support from 

September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Melvin Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
 
  

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 
Crystal Beville 
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